
 

1 | P a g e  

 

ACCOMACK COUNTY WETLANDS MINUTES OF AUGUST 27, 2020 

At a meeting of the Accomack County Wetlands Board held on the 27TH day of August 2020 in the Accomack County 

Administration Building Board Chambers, Room #104, in Accomac, Virginia. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

MEMBERS PRESENT AND ABSENT  

Wetland Board Members Present  

Mr. Earl Frederick, Chairman 

Mr. George Ward, Vice Chairman   

Mr. Timothy Getek 

Mr. Gene Wayne Taylor 

Mr. T. Lee Byrd 

                                                           

Others Present:   

Mr. G. Christian Guvernator IV, PE, Director Environmental Programs  

Ms. Chontese Ridley, Environmental Programs Permit Specialist    

Ms. Allison Lay, Virginia Marine Resources Commission (VMRC) 

 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM    

There being a quorum, Chairman Frederick called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 

 

1. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

On a motion made by Mr. Taylor and seconded by Mr. Ward, the Wetlands Board voted to 

approve the agenda. 

 

2. MINUTES 

3.01 Draft August 2020 Minutes 

On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Byrd, the Wetlands Board voted to 

approve the February minutes, as corrected. 

3. OLD BUSINESS 

4.01 Grand Bay Properties – VMRC# 2020-0808 
Seaview Street, Captain’s Cove 

To replace 150 linear feet of failing bulkhead 

 

Mr. Norman Pitt, (Cornerstone Environmental) appeared before the Wetlands Board and was sworn 

in by Chairman Frederick. Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Pitt to refresh the board’s memory on the 

application. Mr. Pitts explained that the project entailed three different lots in Captain’s Cove, (756, 

757, & 758). He added the applicant wanted to do a bulkhead replacement and fill behind it due to 

some of the sheathing washing out and the tiebacks have rusted out. Mr. Pitts also added that these 

lot were located in the Intensely Developed Area, (IDA), of Captain’s Cove. They had already been 

permitted by the Army Corps of Engineers to replace the bulkhead.   

 

Mr. Taylor asked if the project had been cleared with VMRC and Mr. Pitt said it was, however, it the 

project had since been reevaluated. Mr. Pitt said he had the two requested drawings. One showing 

mean high water and one showing mean high water, mean low water, and ½ times mean high water. 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

Mr. Frederick read a letter that was sent by VMRC on August 7, 2020 stating the no permit needed 

letter that was sent out on May 20, 2020 was being rescinded, and that a permit from the Virginia 

Marine Resources Commission, (VMRC), would be needed for the project. The letter was signed by 

Ms. Allison Lay, (VMRC representative).  

 

Mr. Pitt said that he was aware of the letter. Mr. Taylor said he wanted to ask Ms. Lay a question. 

Mr. Byrd also said he needed a little more education on why it was rescinded.  

 

Ms. Allison Lay, (VMRC) appeared before the Wetlands Board and was sworn in by Chairman 

Frederick. Ms. Lay stated that by a desktop review by Mr. Hank, (George), Badger that a permit 

would not be needed to replace the bulkhead because of an exemption for bulkheads being replaced 

in the footprint. Upon doing a site visit and receiving revised drawings, it was shown that the mean 

high low tide was landward of the existing failed bulkhead. Therefore submerged lands are proposed 

to be filled in the application and what led to the applicant needing a permit from VMRC.  

 

Mr. Byrd said that Mr. Badger had been around for a long time and what to know if that was 

something that normally occurred. Ms. Lay said no, and that this was the first time she had heard of 

it happening.  

 

Mr. Frederick reread the description of the proposed work as stated in the application noting that the 

155 feet was changed to 150 feet. He also added that there was no mention of fill.                                                                                                                                                                                                           

 

Mr. Pitt said that they did not go in wanting to do a bulkhead replacement. The applicant only seeked 

to do maintenance, however, Mr. Hank Badger, (during a site visit) said it was not maintenance. He 

said it was a replacement. Mr. Pitt told Mr. Frederick that he was correct about the fill not being in 

the application description. Although it was not listed in the description, Mr. Pitt said it was shown 

in the drawings. Mr. Pitt said they only wanted to go to the top of the bank. He also mentioned that 

his consultant, Mr. Fluhart, told him not to touch any vegetation. That if he kept everything below it, 

and at mean low water, it would only be in VMRC and the USACOE’s jurisdiction.  

 

Mr. Frederick asked the audience if there was anyone present who wished to speak concerning the 

application. No one came forward and the public comment period was closed.  

 

Mr. Frederick said that Mr. Fluhart might had made an error. From the drawings it shows the board’s 

jurisdiction ending at the base or somewhere halfway up the scarp where the erosion had occurred. A 

discussion ensued on where the board’s jurisdiction was ending with Mr. Frederick saying the 

replacement of the bulkhead was out of the board’s jurisdiction.  

 

Mr. Taylor asked Ms. Lay was she aware that Hank did a site visit. He also added that he knew she 

was very smart from the previous month’s meeting, but felt there would be correspondence between 

the county and VMRC if the matter could not be resolved. Mr. Taylor added that Mr. Davis 

previously had permission to build and now does not. He also made it known that he was not trying 

to accuse anyone of any wrong doing & Mr. Pitt said that he was not either, but that the photos that 

accompanied his VIMS letter were Mr. Badger’s site visit pictures.  

 

Mr. Getek asked to have it confirmed that there was no square footage/linear feet of fill listed in the 

application, but that it was shown in the drawings. It was confirmed that was correct.  

 

Mr. Byrd said there was still some confusion. He had not known Mr. Badger, who has retired, to 

make those type of mistakes. Mr. Frederick said the board was still responsible for deciding whether 



 

3 | P a g e  

 

or not to allow fill. Mr. Pitt said that he was told by Mr. Guvernator that the fill would probably be 

permitted, but that it would be the board’s decision to make.  

 

Mr. Rich Morrison, (Deputy County Administrator for Accomack County), appeared before the 

Wetlands Board and was sworn in by Chairman Frederick. Mr. Morrison said he and Mr. Guvernator 

had spoken briefly on the cases. He said there was jurisdictional issues at the July meeting.   

 

Additional discussion ensued and ended with Mr. Morrison telling the board that the real question 

was whether or not they wanted to allow the fill.  

 

Mr. Byrd asked if there was anyone who had been on the board longer than him that knew of an 

application being approved without know the amount of fill to be placed. He said he had not known 

it be done. Mr. Getek wanted to know if they were going to permit someone filling up state land. Mr. 

Frederick asked Mr. Pitt could he do the calculations now during the meeting, and Mr. Pitts said yes. 

Mr. Pitt said they now had an established survey, (that had not yet to be seen by Mr. Guvernator), 

and that with it they could get a more accurate number. He would just need to know exactly where 

the boards’ jurisdiction was.  

 

A discussion ensued.  

 

Mr. Getek said he visited the site this morning and seen a small amount of vegetative wetlands, (13 

square feet). Mr. Pitt said that Mr. David Fluhart said it might have been 20 square feet. Mr. Byrd 

said to go with the 20 square feet. Mr. Frederick added that they had already determined that this site 

would not be suitable for a living shore line.  

 

Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Pitt what his proposal was. Mr. Pitt said his next step would be to supply 

the new drawing to VMRC and Mr. Guvernator, and have them to agree on the drawings. From there 

he said they would come up with the cubic feet of area to be filled. Mr. Frederick asked Mr. 

Morrison if there was a way for the board to approve the application before those things were 

facilitated. Mr. Morrison said the board could move it forward. The risk would be that there was 

some uncertainty with no agreement on the 1.5. Mr. Morrison added that a continuance to the next 

month, with all information supplied, would make their, the board’s), decision much easier.  

 

Mr. Taylor said he agreed, but added if a storm were to come in between that time the applicant 

could not afford to lose any more land. The bulkhead there is no longer protecting the property.  

 

A discussion ensued.  

 

Mr. Byrd said if the board were to make a motion to approve with the items that need to be 

submitted and Grand Bay agrees to it, then Grand Bay would be taking all the risk.   

 

A discussion ensued. 

 

Mr. Bill Davis, (applicant), appeared before the Wetlands Board and was sworn in by Chairman 

Frederick. Mr. Davis asked if it could be set up that if he did encroach that Mr. Guvernator can tell 

him that he has to come back before the board. He said this way the board would be covered. Mr. 

Getek said he liked it and asked the other board members if it seemed reasonable to them. They 

agreed.  

 



 

4 | P a g e  

 

Mr. Taylor asked Ms. Lay if she did a site visit and sent him a letter (no permit needed letter) how 

long would it be good for. Ms. Lay stated that those letters do not have an expiration date, but sites 

can change. She said it would be hard to say when someone would be in violation. Mr. Taylor then 

asked Ms. Lay had the county or VIMS contacted her about her decision. Ms. Lay said not that she 

knew of. Mr. Taylor also asked Ms. Lay how this come to be, looking at the site again. Ms. Lay 

explained that she noticed there might be an issue during her site visit. She then bought the issue up 

to her boss. Mr. Taylor said it was just a difference between the way she, (Ms. Lay), looked at it and 

the way Mr. Badger looked at it. Mr. Taylor then said he was happy to hear that was all it was. Mr. 

Taylor asked Ms. Lay if know that Mr. Badger did an actual site visit vs. the desktop inspection 

changed her thinking any. Ms. Lay said she was going to leave what had already been done with the 

letter as it was at that point.  

 

Mr. Getek chimed into say that Mr. Badger did not mention any vegetative wetland impacts in his 

report, but now they have 20 square feet of impact. He said that to say that sites do change.  

 

Mr. Davis stood to speak on his feelings about his no permit letter being rescinded. He stated that 

conditions can change and ask if that meant that the permit is no longer valid. Mr. Davis thought that 

when a permit was given you would be good. He asked if he was issued a permit today and a storm 

comes in the next day if that meant a person could be told to re-permit. Mr. Davis said it was not 

right. When Mr. Badger came out he went based off what he seen when he was there. For someone 

to come back later saying that something changed and to rescind the letter was not right.  

 

Mr. Morrison wanted to give some insight on the matter and answer the question. He was a no 

permit required which was not the same as having a permit. Mr. Morrison said if his department 

issued a permit they would honor it even if the conditions changed. He then stressed again that there 

was a big difference between a no permit required letter and an actual permit. Mr. Frederick said 

even when someone sends in a request the board will ask the conditions changed.  

 

Mr. Davis said he totally disagreed with what Mr. Morrison had to say. He said just because they, 

(VMRC), did not call it a permit it was still a permit. It allowed him to go on and do the work. Mr. 

Davis added that Mr. Morrison was trying minimize it and that it was not right. He thought it was 

wrong that no permit required letters were not honored. This should have been put in the letter, but it 

was not be it was not the letters intended purpose, said Mr. Davis.  

 

A discussion ensued.  

 

On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Taylor, the Wetlands Board voted to 

issue a permit (valid for (1) year) for Grand Bay Properties – VMRC# 2020-0808 to place fill, 

with the following corrections: 

1. Add information showing the cubic yards of fill to be used 

2. Pay $240.00 into the mitigation fund for 20 square feet of impacts to vegetative wetlands 

3. Show county staff the various tide ranges, practically the 1 ½ mean tide range 

4. Per the applicant, this approval is contingent on Mr. Guvernator confirming that only 20 

square feet of vegetative wetlands need mitigation. The county has the right to bring 

this application back to the Wetlands Board if there is any extensive vegetative 

wetlands impacted.  

5. Add the new drawings to the application 

This property is located in Greenbackville, VA 23356, tax map# (s) 5A1-1-758, 5A1-1-757, and 

5A1-1-756. 

 



 

5 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Recess: On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Ward, the Wetlands Board 

voted to take a 10 minute break. 

 

  

Meeting reconvened at 11:23 AM 

 

 

4.02 Albert F. Dassler VMRC #2020-0877  
23395 Franconia Drive, Onancock 

            The construction of approximately 125 linear feet of rip rap (After the fact) 

 

Mr. Chris Guvernator, (Director, Accomack Co. Env. Programs), appeared before the Wetlands 

Board and was sworn in by Chairman Frederick. Mr. Frederick asked Mr. Guvernator if he would 

like to fully explain the project. Mr. Guvernator said that Mr. Dassler, (applicant/owner), on his own 

installed some rip rap on the outside of his point to stem erosion that was happening just inside the 

mouth of Cedar Creek. His office found out about this after a complaint came through. Mr. Dassler 

applied for this permit as an “After the Fact.” In the most recent correspondence from Mr. Dassler he 

asked for the addition of filter cloth to be added as a revision. Mr. Guvernator said Mr. Dassler let 

him know that he would not be able to attend the meeting due to his health, but understood that the 

application would be moving forward without him being in attendance.  

 

Mr. Frederick asked the audience if there was anyone present who wished to speak concerning the 

application. No one came forward and the public comment period was closed.  

 

Mr. Ward asked if the stone on the outside of the mouth was permitted and it was.  

 

Mr. Taylor asked if Mr. Dassler was okay with putting the filter cloth in and the answer was yes. Mr. 

Guvernator said Mr. Dassler sent in a letter asking to amend his application to include filter fabric.  

 

A discussion ensued.  

 

On a motion made by Mr. Byrd and seconded by Mr. Ward, the Wetlands Board voted to 

issue a permit (valid for (1) year) for Albert F. Dassler VMRC #2020-0877 to construct 

approximately 125 linear feet of rip rap (After the fact) with the following corrections: 

1. Remove the rip rap accordingly and place the filter fabric under it 

The property is located in Onancock, VA 23417, Tax Map# 84-3-C1.      

 

 

4.  NEW BUSINESS 

5.01 NASA VMRC #2020-0938  
North Seawall Road 

Installation of exploratory borings for dock design 

 

Mr. Frederick said the board’s only concern was the boring going into the marsh which was in the 

board’s jurisdiction.  

 

Mr. Nathan (Nate) Overby, (Virginia Commercial Space Flight Authority), appeared before the 

Wetlands Board and was sworn in by Chairman Frederick. He said this was his company’s project, 

but that NASA owned the land. On the north end of Wallops Island they were in the environmental 



 

6 | P a g e  

 

design phase for another, (pier and channel), project that would require some geotechnical borings 

and sampling.  

 

Mr. Overby said the pier would be coming off the end of the run way on an angle heading North 

West into the deeper waters. Part of the pier will be going over the marshy area and boring needed to 

be done there to get samples.  

 

Mr. Frederick asked the audience if there was anyone present who wished to speak concerning the 

application. No one came forward and the public comment period was closed.  

 

Mr. Getek said he was curious about how they were going to do the work in the marsh, and asked if 

they had a marsh buggy. Mr. Overby said yes, and that they would have to come over from the land 

side. He said they would be using different size mats that would not be very harmful to the 

environment.  

 

Mr. Guvernator chimed in to say that revision one of the JPA included a three year monitoring 

period of active vegetation regrowth and planting scheme if there was a deficiency in regrowth.  

 

Mr. Frederick asked to confirm that this application was only for the borings and that was correct.  

 

On a motion made by Mr. Taylor and seconded by Mr. Getek, the Wetlands Board voted to 

issue a permit (valid for (1) year) for NASA VMRC #2020-0938 to install of exploratory 

borings for dock design. The property is located on Wallops Island, VA 23337, Tax Map# 57-

A-1.      

 

 5.02 Robert Hetzell – VMRC# 2020-1160 

 Seaview Drive Greenbackville, VA 

 To remove an existing bulkhead and the installation of a new bulkhead in the existing foot print. 

  

 Mr. Raymond Britton, Jr., (BIC, Inc.), appeared before the Wetlands Board and was sworn in by 

Chairman Frederick. Mr. Britton said they dug behind the existing bulkhead to replace it and all the 

boards were rotten. From there he decided the bulkhead needed to be replaced. He added that it has 

gotten worse since digging behind it and that low tide was about at the bulkhead line.  

 

 A discussion ensued. 

 

 Mr. Britton said that Mr. Hetzell, (applicant), has sold the property but still has to put the bulkhead 

in. Mr. Taylor asked if the bulkhead was going two feet out or in place. Mr. Britton said it was going 

in place.  

 

 Mr. Frederick asked the audience if there was anyone present who wished to speak concerning the 

application. No one came forward and the public comment period was closed. 

 

 Mr. Frederick told Mr. Britton that he made the board’s job harder by excavating behind the existing 

bulkhead. Mr. Britton had not planned on doing a replacement. He thought it would be a repair job 

until seeing the rotten boards. He also wants to fill up to the back up the new bulkhead.  

 

 Mr. Getek asked Ms. Lay to confirm mean low water. Asking her if it was really seaward of the 

bulkhead. Ms. Lay disagreed saying she thought mean low water was landward of the existing failed 

bulkhead on her site visit and revision drawings. Mr. Britton said it depended on the time of day. 



 

7 | P a g e  

 

 Mr. Frederick asked Ms. Lay if she thought mean low was landward, did that mean the bulkhead was 

out of their jurisdiction. Ms. Lay said the bulkhead appeared to be out of the board’s jurisdiction, but 

that the fill was in the board’s jurisdiction.  

          

 A discussion ensued.  

 

Mr. Fredrick if quantity of fill was mentioned in the application, and Mr. Guvernator said 10 cubic 

yards. Mr. Taylor chimed in to say more than that would be needed.  

 

Mr. Guvernator added that there was a new owner according to the county’s assessor. He said the 

request, in the motion, an owner’s affidavit to make sure they understand what is going on.  

 

On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Taylor, the Wetlands Board voted to 

issue a permit (valid for (1) year) for Robert Hetzell – VMRC# 2020-1160 to place fill behind a 

bulkhead with the following corrections: 

1. Give notification to the new owners about the approval of this permit 

2. Fill will be contingent on information given to county staff to verify fill 

The property is located in Greenbackville, VA 23356, Tax Map# 5A1-1-765.      

 

 5.03 Old Dominion Electric Cooperative – VMRC# 2020-1246 
 Chincoteague Road, Route 175 

 Marsh access for electrical insulator replacement 

 

Mr. Corey Gray, (Santec), appeared before the Wetlands Board and was sworn in by Chairman 

Frederick. Mr. Gray said this was maintenance project along their existing transmission line that 

goes along Chincoteague Road. The insulators are at the end of their lives, and it is now a safety 

hazard that needs to be fixed. All work is going to be done on the structures and Mr. Gray said that 

he would be discussing how the workers will access them.  

 

Mr. Gray stated there were 51 structures on an existing line and only a subset of them where in the 

board’s jurisdiction. The access will be coming off of Chincoteague Road. They would be using 

mats and a combination of boom trucks/crane or bucket trucks. Timber matting will be used in the 

wetland area so as soon as they come off the road the mats will be installed. 

 

Mr. Gray said they were anticipating 600 square feet of impacts. He calculated just under 29,000 

square feet of estimated temporary encroachment over vegetative tidal wetlands and just under 3,000 

square feet of non-vegetative tidal wetlands flats encroachment.  

 

Mr. Frederick asked the audience if there was anyone present who wished to speak concerning the 

application. No one came forward and the public comment period was closed. 

 

Mr. Taylor asked how much luck have they had in the past with natural regrowth once the mats were 

pulled up. Mr. Gray said it was usually really successful without having to replant. Mr. Byrd asked if 

there was an issue would they, (the applicant), fix it. Mr. Gray said yes. Mr. Taylor asked Mr. Gray 

to submit a planting plan in case something were to go wrong.  

 

A discussion ensued. 

 



 

8 | P a g e  

 

Mr. Guvernator said this project was requested by ODEC, but they do not own the property. 

Chincoteague & NASA are owners. Affidavits will be needed.                           

 

On a motion made by Mr. Taylor and seconded by Mr. Getek, the Wetlands Board voted to 

issue a permit (valid for (1) year) for Old Dominion Electric Cooperative – VMRC# 2020-1246 

to replace electrical insulators along overhead wires in marsh with the following corrections: 

1. Submit a monitoring and planting plan for a 3 year term if there is no growth after 

the first year 

2. Obtain owner affidavits from NASA and the Town of Chincoteague 

The property is located on Chincoteague Road, Route 175, tax map# 28-A-75, 28-A-76, 30-A-1, 

and 30-A-1A.     

 

5.04 Bernard & Lisa Russell – VMRC# 2020-1316 
Russell Drive 

30-foot extension of existing bulkhead return wall 

 

Mr. Chris Guvernator stated that the applicants wanted to add a 30-foot extension on to an existing 

return wall that connects to a longer 1,800 feet bulkhead fronting Onancock Creek. The extension 

will be tied into the upland behind some existing concrete rubble. The rubble left behind the return 

wall will be removed and planted with the less than 10 cubic yards of fill placed behind the structure 

in order to stabilize the root system of an existing pine tree. Alterna flora will be planted.  

 

Mr. Frederick asked if the applicant was available and Mr. Guvernator said no. The applicants agent, 

(Ellen Grimes – CRM, LLC), requested that the application be continued for one month.   

 

Mr. Frederick asked the audience if there was anyone present who wished to speak concerning the 

application. No one came forward and the public comment period was closed. 

 

On a motion made by Mr. Byrd and seconded by Mr. Ward, the Wetlands Board voted to give 

a one-month continuance for Bernard & Lisa Russell – VMRC# 2020-1316 to install a 30-foot 

extension of existing bulkhead return wall with 10 cubic yards of fill. The property is located in 

Onancock, VA 23417, Tax Map#83B-A-1 .      
 

5. NEXT MEETING 

The next Wetlands Board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, September 24, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. in the 

Accomack County Board Chambers, Room 104, in Accomac, VA. 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT 

On a motion made by Mr. Byrd and seconded by Mr. Getek, the Wetlands Board voted to adjourn the 

meeting. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:26 p.m. 

_________________________________________  

Earl Frederick, Chairman 

 

 __________________________________________  

Chontese Ridley, Environmental Permit Specialist 


